






 1

 
AMENDED MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday, February 17, 2015 7:30 P.M. 

 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin.  Absent: None 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

        Motion to amend the Agenda to move the Public Comments to the top of the agenda was made  
        by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, 
        Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None.          
 
        City Manager Gary Huff read a statement in reference to the order of the public comments  
        and how they would be addressed.  Mayor Fess stated questions would not be answered at this  
        time. 
          
       PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
       Quite a large number of citizens came forward to voice their concerns over the increased electric  
       rates for various reasons.  There were many different questions raised on how the city came up   
       with the higher than normal electric rates, when it was stated they would only go up 2% with the 
       rate increase.  Some of the citizens stated their utility bills went up 30% to 40% in some cases   
       and others were raised by only 10% to 15%.  The general consensus was why the bills were so  
       high, and why were some estimated and some not.  Questions were raised about the meter  
       readers not going out in cold weather to read the meters, and estimating the bills most of the time.  
       Some resident’s citied living in very small homes or apartments and having enormously high bills  
       for no reason. One of the main concerns was the city shutting off the electric when bills are not  
       paid by the shut off date, and not allowing citizens to make payments on large bills or going on 
       level billing.  One resident stated they had contacted Direct Energy for their electric use and was  
       waiting to hear back from them.  A resident came forward and provided a list of properties to the  
       Mayor of residents that had their electric disconnected recently in the cold weather. 
 
       Law Director Stacy Wall stated Federal Law prohibits discussing personal business in a public  
       forum, and that the City would not be responding to personal accounts at this time. Ms. Wall 
       further stated there is a list being passed around and asked residents to sign their name, address,  
       and telephone number so the city can set up appointments to respond to their questions.  
 
        Bill Jaqua, N. Sunset Dr. voiced his opinion on Economic Development in the City of  
        Piqua and information that is on the website.  City Manager Huff asked Mr. Jaqua to come and sit  
        down with him to discuss his concerns. 
        
       Don Kuchta, Walker St, came forward and voiced his concern over Ordinance No. 3-15 over the 
       removal of the traffic signals at Broadway and North and along College Street, leaving the long  
       stretch on College and Broadway if the traffic signals are removed.  Mr. Kuchta further 
       stated he is the Executive Director of Meal on Wheels Program and is out driving on the streets  
       quite often.  He stated he has seen first-hand some drivers that do not know how to proceed  
       through a 4-way stop, and some that just roll through. Mr. Kuchta stated his major concern is 
       about children having to walk to school along College and Broadway streets, and the fact that  
       they will have nowhere to cross if the traffic signals are removed.  Another concern is the use of 
       the bright yellow flashing light as Mr. Kuchta feels they are insufficient, due to the fact that yellow  
       does not mean stop, just caution and slow down   Mr. Kuchta also mentioned the intersection of  
       High and Downing stating he feels it to is insufficient to remove the traffic signal for safety  
       reasons.  It is most important to consider the safety issues when reviewing Ordinance No 
       3-15, said Mr. Kuchta. 
 



 2

 
     Joe Drapp, Park Avenue, came forward and provided additional information regarding the electric  
      rates, further stating he is on the Piqua Energy Board, and the Energy Board Meetings are also  
      open to the public. 
 
      Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, came forward to voice his opinion on recycling changes. 
 
       Commissioner Vogt stated citizens should check the wiring in their homes, he found his own  
       older home had old wiring and had it replaced and his electric bills went down. There are a lot of  
       older homes in Piqua that might benefit from having the wiring checked out. 
 
       City Manager Huff addressed some of the issues and encouraged citizens to come in and meet  
       with the city officials to discuss their bills and get answers to their questions. There were a lot of  
       technical questions asked and City Manager Huff stated he would be putting out a statement to try 
       and answer all of the concerns that were presented. 
 
      Consent Agenda 
 
      Approval of Minutes  
     
      Approval of the minutes from the February 2, 2015 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
         
      Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent 
      Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
      unanimously 
 
       OLD BUSINESS  
 
       ORD. NO. 1-15 (3rd Reading) 
 
       An Ordinance amending Chapter 50 of the Piqua Code, relating to garbage and refuse 
 
       Amy Welker, Director of Health & Sanitation provided the Staff Report. 
 
       Ordinance No. 1-1-5 cleans up the language and aligns with current practices, also adding  
       language to prepare for the addition of the curbside recycling as a service that will be offered by  
       the Piqua Sanitation Department. The changes do not include any additional rate adjustments or 
       fee increases at this time, stated Ms. Welker. 
 
       Some of the amendments include adding a definition of bulk items and limiting these items to 3  
        per week; definition of recyclable material and the requirement of the items to be placed in a  
        container provided by the city which will remain the property of the city, and customers will be  
        charged for replacement of the container if misused; clarifies yard waste is to be placed in paper  
        biodegradable bags; also adds recyclables to the list of items that are not to be tampered with  
        once they are placed out for pickup by customers. 
 
         Commissioners asked if the information has been provided to the residents.  Ms. Welker stated  
        flyers are going out in the utility bills to inform residents that the new recycling will begin the first  
        of May. 
       
         PUBLIC COMMENT 
          
         Joe Francis, W. Parkway Drive came forward and stated he does not understand why the city  
         charges citizens to recycle, and feels the city should be paying people to recycle. 
 
          City Manager Huff explained that the fees have went up for recycling, and by the City  
          providing their own recycling they can try and avoid any rate increases in the future. 
 



 3

          Mr. Francis also commented on the utility bill issue, stating he feels people are intimated by  
          having to coming up to speak when they know it is being televised, and further stating he is glad  
          to see the city trying to work with residents on the situation. 
 
          Mayor Fess stated the city is going to find a way to reach out to the citizens, we are doing the  
          best we can and will find out what is going on. 
 
          Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 1-15 be 
          adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried  
          unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance 1-15 adopted. 
             
          ORD. NO. 3-15 (2n READING) 
 
          An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule IV and Schedule 
          VII of the Piqua Code, relating to four-way stop intersections and traffic control devices 
        
         City Engineer, Amy Havenar provided the Staff Report. 
 

 In May of 2012, the City was notified of our award of a Safe Routes to School (SRTS) grant for               
the construction of infrastructure projects around the Piqua Junior High School site, Washington 
Intermediate School site, and the Wilder Intermediate School site.  As a part of these construction 
improvements, there will be modifications to the traffic control devises within the project limits.  
The following areas will be modified: 

 Park Avenue & Westview Drive – Convert from 2-way stop to a 4-way stop. 
 Park Avenue & Parkway Drive – Convert from 2-way stop to a 4-way stop. 
 College Street & Ash Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with Ash 
     Street being the stop street. 
 College Street & Greene Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with 

Greene Street being the stop street. 
 College Street & North Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with 

North Street being the stop street.  
 Broadway & North Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with North 

Street being the stop street. 
 Downing Street and W. High Street – Remove the existing traffic signal and make a 4-way 

stop. 
 Downing Street and Ash Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 4-way stop. 

All of these intersections were evaluated as a part of the Intersection Improvements Study and 
as a part of the Safe Routes to School design.  While the Safe Routes to School Project is not 
scheduled to be constructed until this summer, we are bringing this ordinance before 
Commission at this time due to the lengthy timeframe that it takes to remove a signal.   
 
Commissioners raised several questions concerning the removal of the Traffic Signal at 
Broadway and North Streets due to the close proximity of the Piqua Catholic North Street School 
Campus.  Commissioners stated they would like to see a 4-way stop at Broadway and North St. 
 
City Engineer, Amy Havenar provided a short video showing how the rectangular rapid flashing 
beacons would work, stating they are very attention grabbing.  Ms. Havenar further stated there 
is an Educational program that will be provided to the schools to educate the students on the 
proper way of crossing the street with the stop signs and flashing lights. 
 
Commissioner Vogt voiced his opinion on the Safe Routes to School program, further stating he 
will vote no on any legislation that takes the traffic signal out at Broadway and North. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he has received a lot of calls regarding the removal of the traffic 
signal at Broadway and North Streets and is not sure a 2-way stop is the best idea, and 
also stated he received concerns about the removal of all the traffic signals on College Street.   
 



 4

Commissioner Martin made a motion to amend Ordinance 3-15, and it was seconded by 
Commissioner Vogt to remove Broadway and North Street from the Ordinance at this time.  No 
vote was taken at this time.   
 
City Manager Huff stated minor changes can possibly be made to the Ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she still would like to see a 4-way stop on College and Greene 
Streets, and asked if the Safe Routes to School Program would be affected if the City did not 
follow the guidelines they had set in place at Broadway & North Streets 
 
Commissioners voiced their concerns about the removal of the traffic signal at Broadway and 
North Streets with Piqua Catholic North Street Campus located so close to the corner. Also there 
is further concern about having 2-way stops on College street versus 4-way stops at several of 
the intersections, do not like the fact of a two way stop at the corner of Downing and High with 
the number of children and pedestrians that cross there by the YMCA, and discussing curb 
extensions. 
There was discussion about amending the Ordinance to remove several of the intersections from 
the Ordinance at this time.  City Manager Huff stated they would look at the Ordinance and take 
in to consideration of the amendments the Commissioners would like to see, and provide further 
information before the next Commission Meeting. 

 
  The motion made by Commissioner Martin, and seconded by Commissioner Vogt to remove  
  Broadway and North from Ordinance 3-15 was withdrawn at this time. 

  
Mayor Fess stated this is the second reading and we will try and get answers to some of the 
questions and see if changes can be made before the next reading. 
 

  Commissioner Wilson expressed concern over the turn lanes at Downing and High Streets on  
  the south side, and possibly removing them  to allow parking so they are not used as turn lanes,  
  and asked that they also look into removing the turn lanes. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

         
         No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 3-15. 
         
         Ordinance No. 3-15 was given a Second Reading. 
 
         RES. NO. R-24-15 
    
         A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Supreme Irrigation Inc. for the purchase and  
         installation of a new irrigation control system for Echo Hills Golf Course 
 
         Cynthia Holtzapple, Finance Director/Assistant City Manager provided the Staff Report. 
 
          The old equipment dates as far back as1988 and can no longer find parts to maintain it.  Five  
          companies submitted a total of eight bids. Mr. Kirt Huemmer thoroughly reviewed the  
          specifications and bids and recommended the Toro Lynx CE with VP Satellite System from  
          Supreme Irrigation Inc. The Toro system is the top of the line and we can keep our spare parts  
          from the current system to use for repairs if needed in the future, stated Ms. Holtzapple. The  
          work will include the purchase and installation of the control system only, no new pipeline will be  
          going in at this time.  Basically, we are upgrading the communication system between the  
          central control site to the field satellites, also included is on additional year of warranty. 
 
           Commissioner Martin asked how long the original warranty is for that comes with the system? 
 
           Ms. Holtzapple stated one year only, thus the reason for the additional warranty.. 
                     
           Commissioner Terry stated the City needs to maintain the golf course and we need to have a  



 5

           working irrigation system.        
         
           Public Comment 
 
          No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution R-24-15. 
 
          Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-24-15  
          be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None .Motion carried  
          unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-24-15 adopted. 
        
         RES. NO. R-25-15 
 
         A Resolution authorizing a purchase order with A-1 Reliable Services for the removal of dead  
         Ash trees and stumps at the Echo Hills Golf Course 
         
         Cynthia Holtzapple, Finance Director /Assistant City Manager provided the Staff Report. 
        Over the last few years, Bob Graeser and Kirt Huemmer has been monitoring the emerald ash 
        bore activity to the golf course trees. There are approximately 45 dead ash trees and numerous  
        stump that have deteriorated and are hazardous for the golf course.  In the past the city has 
        worked with JVS students to remove trees as needed, but they do not have the capability or 
        expertise to take down this many large trees in a short period of time. The best time to do this  
        work is while the ground is frozen. It is safer to have this work done before the course is opened  
        to the public for the upcoming season, as there is the potential of these trees falling at any time if  
        we had a strong wind storm that typically happens in the Spring. We are asking that 
        Resolution No. R-25-15 be approved as the timeline is that they would start immediately and it  
        would take approximately 2-3 three weeks to complete. We will continue to monitor the other  
        trees and remove them at a later time as needed, stated Ms. Holtzapple. 
   
        Law Director Stacy Wall stated with the intent for work to start immediately, Resolution R-25-15   
        will need to be amended under Section 3, as it states the resolution will not take effect for ten  
        days after publication, and this needs to be written and passed as an emergency.  The reason for 
        the emergency is the ground is frozen and the trees need to be removed now, the golf course has  
        to be prepared now before golf season opens, so with the emergency written the contractor can  
        get in there tomorrow to begin removing the trees, stated Ms. Wall. 
 
        Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to amend Resolution No. R- 
        25-15 under Section 3, as stated by Ms. Wall.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Terry, Wilson, Martin, and  
       Vogt. Nay, None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
       Public Comment  
 
      Greg Neves, W Greene Street came forward and asked what will be done with the lumber after  
      taking the trees down.    
 
      Kirt Huemmer, Golf Course Supervisor stated the company taking the trees down has already 
      contracted to have the trees mulched.  
       
      Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-25-15  
      be adopted, as amended.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry ,Martin, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion  
      carried unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No R-25-15 adopted, as amended.  
     
      RES. NO. R- 26-15 
 
      A Resolution authorizing the Law Director to petition the Board of County Commissioner, Miami  
      County, Ohio for a change in the boundary lines of Washington Township 
 
      Law Director Stacy Wall provided the Staff Report. 
 



 6

      This is the last step in the process of the annexation of the property for the Water Treatment  
      Plant.  This came before the Commission in December to detatch and re-annex the property into  
      the City of Piqua. The Miami County Commissioners have approved the annexation and this step  
      allows the Law Director to take the paperwork to the County Engineers Office to have the maps  
      redrawn showing the boundaries of the property being removed from the township and being  
      placed into the City, and also allows for proper taxing of the property with the new boundary. 
 
       Public Comment 

 
  No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-26-15 
 

      Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-26- 
      5 be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried  
      unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-26-15 adopted. 
 
     RES. NO. R-27-15 
 
     A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Best Equipment Co. for the purchase of a Refuse 
     Packer Truck 
 
     Amy Welker, Health & Sanitation Director provided the Staff Report. 
 
     This truck will be an addition to the fleet of vehicles the Sanitation Department is currently using,   
     and will allow us to move forward with the in-house recycling program to begin May 1, 2015.  Two 
     items were considered when selecting the bid, one was price, and the second was the delivery  
     time. This truck had the shortest delivery date being 30-45 days.  This was budgeted in the 2015  
     budget and we will be using reserve funds, stated Ms. Welker. 
 
     Public Comment 
 
    No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution R.27-15. 
 
    Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-27-15 be  
    adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Wilson, Terry, and Fess. Nay,  None. Motion carried       
    unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-27-15 adopted. 
 
    RES. NO. R-28-15 
 
    A Resolution to award a contract to CDM Smith for the construction administration of the Off-Site  
    Pipeline Project as part of the new Water Treatment Plant 
 
    Don Friesthler, Water Plant Superintendent provided the Staff Report. 
 
    In November 2012, CDM Smith was contracted by the City of Piqua to engineer and design the off-   
    site pipeline project for the design of the new Water Treatment Plant. In September 2014, the plans    
    for the new plant and pipeline project were finalized by the Ohio EPA.  In October 2014, bids were  
    opened for the construction of the off-site pipeline project and now this resolution to award the  
    contract to J&J Schlaegel, Inc. is before the Commission for approval.  In November of 2014, a  
    resolution was passed authorizing the intent to award the contract to CDM Smith for loan purposes.   
    This resolution will allow CDM Smith to oversee all aspects of the construction of the pipeline 
    project and ensure that it follows the plans as designed, stated Mr. Friesthler. 
 
    Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-28-15 be  
    adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry. Nay None. Motion carried  
    unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-28-15 adopted. 
 
 
 



 7

   RES. NO. R-29-15 
 
   A Resolution awarding a contract to J & J Schlaegel, Inc. for the Off- Site Pipeline Project as part of   
   the new Water Treatment Plant 
 
   Don Friesthler, Water Plant Superintendent provided the Staff Report. 
 
   The off-site pipeline portion of the new Water Treatment Plan Project will allow for the construction  
   of new water lines, finished water lines, and a new sludge line along SR 66.  This project is needed  
   to tie pipeline for the new Water Treatment Plant into our existing system, stated Mr. Friesthler. Bids  
   were received and J & J Schlaegel was the low bidder.  In November 2014, Resolution No. R-119-14  
   was passed authorizing the intent to award the contract to J & J Schlaegel for loan purposes. 
 
   Commissioner Terry asked if Mr. Freisthler would explain the reason for the off-site pipeline.  Mr.    
   Friesthler explained the need for the off-site pipeline. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-29-15. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-29-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Terry, Fess, Martin, Vogt, and Wilson. Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-29-15 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-30-15 
 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Bowser-Morner, Inc. for the 
testing and observation services for the Off-Site Pipeline project as a part of the new Water Treatment 
Plant 
 
Amy Havenar, City Engineer provided the Staff Report. 
 
This resolution would allow the City to hire Bowser-Morner, Inc. for the necessary testing and 
observation services for the construction of the new raw water line, finished water lines and the new 
sludge line to and from the new water treatment plant, stated Ms. Havenar. 
 
Public Comment  
 
Bill Jaqua, N. Sunset Drive came forward and voiced his concern over the cost of the project and the 
debt the city has now. 
 
City Manager Huff answered Mr. Jaqua’s questions. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-30-15 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Martin. Nay, None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-30-15 adopted. 
 
Monthly Reports 
  
Monthly Reports were accepted. 
 
 City Manager’s Report 
 
 City Manager Huff stated he provided his report at the beginning of the meeting and had nothing 
further at this time. 
 
 
 



 8

 Commissioners Comments 
 
 Commissioner Vogt stated Friends of the Piqua Parks are still in need of donations for the 
 Pitsenbarger Statue, and can be sent to Friends of the Piqua Parks, P. O. Box 270, Piqua, Ohio  
 45356. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she was happy to see all people in the audience, but unhappy they are 
unhappy.  It is good to know that people are interested in what happens in the City and residents can 
receive information in many ways including the Spirit Newsletter, website, Channel 5,  Piqua Alert, and 
in the Piqua Daily Call, and would like to see more interest in the future. 
 
Mayor Fess encouraged residents to come  to the meetings and voice their thoughts and concerns, 
and can also contact the City Commissioners to voice their opinions. 
 
Commissioner Wilson also stated he was glad to see the residents attending the meeting, and to 
contact any of the Commissioners to voice their opinions not just on Facebook. Also in regards to the 
2% rate increase causing hundreds of dollars of increase, it does not make sense.  We will get to the 
bottom of this. Please take the time to make an appointment to come in and work on a solution, stated 
Commissioner Wilson. 
 
Mayor Fess encouraged residents to contact City Offices to make an appointment to come in and go 
over their utility bills so the City can get to the bottom of the situation.  
 
 Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
 Commission Meeting at 9:50 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. 

 
Tabled 3-3-2015 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1

MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 

Tuesday, March 3, 2015 7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin.  Absent: None 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

       EXECUTIVE SESSION 
    
        Move to Executive Session to consider the purchase or sale of property for public  
        purposes 
 
        Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to move into Executive  
        Session at 7:31 P.M.to consider the purchase or sale of property for public purposes. Roll call,  
        Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
        Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from Executive  
        Session and convene as the Regular City Commission Meeting at 7:46 P.M. 

 
      Consent Agenda 
 
.     Approval of Minutes  
     
      Don Kuchta came forward stating the comments he made on Ordinance No. 3-15 were not  
      included in the Minutes of the February 17th Piqua City Commission Meeting, and he would like to 
      have them included for the record. 
 
       Approval of the minutes from the February 12, 2015 Piqua City Commission Work Session only,  
       as the Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes of February 17, 2015 were tabled at this time. 
        
       Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to approve the Piqua City  
       Commission Work Session Minutes.   Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.  
       Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously 
 
       Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson to table the February 17,  
       2015 Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes at this time. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, 
       Terry, Fess,and Vogt. Nay, None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
       OLD BUSINESS  
      
       ORD. NO. 3-15 (2nd READING) 
 
       An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule IV and Schedule 
       VII of the Piqua Code, relating to four-way stop intersections and traffic control devices 
        
       City Engineer, Amy Havenar provided the Staff Report. 
 

In May of 2012, the City was notified of our award of a Safe Routes to School (SRTS) grant for                       
the construction of infrastructure projects around the Piqua Junior High School site, Washington 
Intermediate School site, and the Wilder Intermediate School site.  As a part of these construction 
improvements, there will be modifications to the traffic control devises within the project limits.  
The following areas will be modified: 

 Park Avenue & Westview Drive – Convert from 2-way stop to a 4-way stop. 
 Park Avenue & Parkway Drive – Convert from 2-way stop to a 4-way stop. 



 2

 College Street & Ash Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with Ash 
Street being the stop street. 

 College Street & Greene Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with 
Greene Street being the stop street. 

 College Street & North Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with 
North Street being the stop street.  

 Broadway & North Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 2-way stop with North 
Street being the stop street. 

 Downing Street and W. High Street – Remove the existing traffic signal and make a 4-way 
stop. 

 Downing Street and Ash Street – Remove existing traffic signal and make a 4-way stop. 

City Manager Huff provided a brief overview of the changes and how they were   
  designated.  Because the Commission was so concerned about keeping the traffic signal at  

Broadway and North streets, it can be taken out of the design at this time without causing any  
problems, stated City Manager Huff. 
 
There was discussion about amending the Ordinance No. 3-15 to remove the traffic signal at the 
 intersection of Broadway and North from Ordinance  No. 3-15 at this time.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Don Kuchta, Walker Street came forward stating he would also like to see the traffic signal at the 
intersection of Downing and High Street not be taken out at this time.  Mr. Kuchta is still 
concerned about the long stretch on College Street if the traffic signals are taken out because of 
pedestrian traffic.  Mr. Kuchta stated he is concerned too about the rapid flashing lights, and the 
safety of the pedestrians crossing at the signal as yellow does not mean stop. 
 
Ron Cooper, W. High Street, came forward and voiced his opinion on removing the traffic signal 
at Broadway and North, stating he feels there should be a traffic signal or stop sign somewhere 
on College Street, and would also like to see the traffic signal stay at Downing and High Streets. 
 
Joe Francis, W. Parkway Drive, came forward and expressed his opinion stating that not once 
has ever seen a citizen’s opinion change the opinion of the City Commission, but as soon as two 
Commissioners want the traffic signal to stay it stays. Mayor Fess stated she too would like the 
traffic signal to stay, and that is more than two Commissioners. 
 
Linda Henry, Boone Street came forward stating she has a child that attends Piqua Catholic 
School and does not like the idea of removing the traffic signals on College Street as her children 
have to cross College Street to get to school. 
 
Jim McMaken, Miami County YMCA,  he would still like to have a four-way stop at the 
intersection of High and Downing, and to also consider installing bump-outs at the intersection of 
High and Downing Streets to slow down traffic in the area.. 
 
Nick Alexander, Roosevelt, came forward and expressed his opinion about the Bike Path lane 
along Greene Street by French Oil, and asked that the city look at the section of pedestrian 
crossing there also.  City Manager Huff stated they would look into it. 
 
Mayor Fess stated when the changes go into effect there will be a period of time the city will be 
able to make certain changes if necessary, and after ODOT has completed the project and it 
comes back to the Commission, the Commission can recommend changes, and if a 4-way stop 
is warranted it can be added in the future. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he understands the concerns of the citizens, who spoke, but the State 
has completed the traffic study, and this is a workable solution.   
 



 3

Mayor Fess stated this is not set in stone if it is passed, but the City will continue to review this 
and if it is not working changes can be made. 
 
Commissioner Terry commented while in she was in Florida she saw an accident where the 
flashing signals were being used for pedestrian crossing, and is concerned about children using 
them.  Commissioner Terry stated the 4-way stop at College and High Street is working well, and 
if any problem occurs on College Street at Greene Street we can add a stop in the future, and is 
also concerned if bump-outs are being considered on College Street. 
 
Mayor Fess stated all of the Commissioners are in agreement that this is something that should 
be followed up to make sure the corners are safe.. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he would like to see the turn lanes taken out at the corner of High and 
Downing Streets, as there could be two more parking spaces utilized instead. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the 4-way stop at High and College is working well. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated the corner by the Post Office use to have a traffic signal, and it now 
has a 4-way stop with traffic moving smoother now, as they are stopping and looking all ways. 
 
Ms. Huffman, Fisher Drive came forward and asked if the study that was completed counted kids 
using the intersection? 
 
Amy Havenar, City Engineer, explained how the study was completed.   
 

  Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to amend Ordinance No. 3 
  15, Section 1, Schedule VII, Traffic Control Devices, to remove Broadway & North Street from 
  the Ordinance at this time. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Fess. Nay; None. 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson to adopt Ordinance No. 3- 
  15, as amended.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, and Terry. Nay: Vogt. Ordinance No. 3-15  
  was adopted, as amended on a 4-1 vote. 

 
           ORD. No. 4-15 
 
           An Ordinance amending Section 94.21 of the Piqua Code, relating to fees for use of Park 
           Facilities 
 
           Brian Brookhart, Assistant Public Works Director, provided the Staff Report. 
 
           At the most recent Park Board Meeting the Park Board members unanimously approved raising  
           the Fees relating to the use of Park Facilities. The last time the fees for Park Facilities were  
           raised was in 2009, stated Mr. Brookhart.  The increase in Fees will help offset the operating  
           cost and maintenance on the buildings. The proposed increases provides a discounted rate to  
           those who live within the Piqua corporation limits.   
 
           Commissioners raised several questions concerning the increase in the fees and asked what  
           percentage the discount is to Piqua residents, the lease/ rent charged for the house in Hollow  

     Park.  Commissioner Vogt stated he felt the rent on the house at Hollow Park was to low, and  
     asked if they would look into raising the rent.  Law Director Stacy Wall stated they would have 
    to look at the lease before making any changes.  Mayor Fess asked if a City employee still lived  
    in the house at Hollow Park.  Mr. Brookhart stated yes, one of the Parks employees lives in the 
    house, but is responsible for opening and closing the gates to Hollow Park in the morning  
    and evenings, and reporting any incidents that occur in the Park. 
 
    Mayor Fess stated this is the first reading of Ordinance No. 4-15 and they will look into the 
    questions raised by Commissioners. 
 



 4

Ordinance No. 4-15 was given a first reading. 
 

       RES. NO. R-31-15 
    
       An Emergency Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Valley Asphalt Corp. for the purchase 
       of road salt for the Street Department 
 
       Doug Harter, Public Works Director provided the Staff Report. 
         
       This year the city has been extremely conservative with the road salt usage, and used the salt  
       brine and calcium chloride application.  These alternative chemicals are available at a less  
       expensive price and are fairly easy to manage and control. At this time the city is in desperate 
       need to purchase more road salt.  We have use the SWOP-4G contract and now they are not able  
       to supply the city with any additional salt at this time.  They referred the city to Valley Asphalt  
       Corp. as an alternative supplier. Valley Asphalt Corp charged the city $150/ton to deliver salt to 
       the city facility in February and would like to request permission to purchase an additional 500  
       tons of salt for future weather events, stated Mr. Harter. 
 
       Commissioners asked several questions regarding the price of salt and where it was coming from. 
   
      Public Comment 
 
       No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-31-15. 
 
      Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-31-15  
      be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried  
      unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-31-15 adopted. 
        
       RES. NO. R-32-15 
 
       A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Lebanon Ford for the purchase of three Ford Police  
       Interceptor Utility vehicles 
         
       Tom Steiner, Deputy Chief of Police provided the Staff Report. 
 
       In 2013 the Police Department started a strategic fleet replacement plan by purchasing two police  
       utility vehicles to replace two Ford Expeditions used by supervisors.  We were very pleased with  
       the performance and functionality of the vehicles and decided to use them for routine patrol  
       duties.  Three additional units were purchased in 2014, and the additional of three more units in  
       2015 will continue the planned replacement.  Bids were experimented with in 2013 to see if the  
       city could do any better than the State Contract, but did not receive any bid requests at that time. 
   
       Previously the Police Department purchased Ford Crown Victoria Police Interceptor (CVPI) as 
       marked cruiser prior to the model being discontinued in 2011. Previously all of the barriers,  
       light bars and other safety equipment,    and lighting were able to be transferred from the old 
       vehicle to the new vehicle, but not now.  Much of the older equipment will not fit on the new model  
       vehicles and is outdated or unreliable, stated Deputy Chief Steiner. 
 
       The total life expectancy of the vehicles in the current fleet plan is five years. Up fitting new  
       vehicles with new light bars, siren controllers, and partitions limits the amount of time the vehicles 
       and related equipment are out of warranty decreasing maintenance costs.  
   
        No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-32-15. 
      
       Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-32- 
      15 be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, Vogt, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried  
       unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No R-32-15 adopted. 
     



 5

      RES. NO. R-33-15 
      
      A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to KE Rose Company for purchase and installation of  
      specialized equipment in Police vehicles 
 
      Tom Steiner, Deputy Chief of Police provided the Staff Report. 
 
      When the Police Department was able to being a new vehicle replacement program in 2013,  
      quotes were received on the purchase and installation of new equipment for the cruisers.  
      KE Rose was selected as the vendor to purchase and install the equipment, as well as removing   
      the old equipment. The Police department has been very satisfied with the workmanship and  
      Service provided by KE Rose., stated Deputy Chief Steiner. 
 
      The Police Department intends to continue to use KE Rose to purchase and install specialized  
      aftermarket equipment.  By using the same vendor it allows for standardization and consistency of  
      equipment which may need to be used by multiple employees in emergency situations. 
 
      Commissioner Martin inquired as to why formal bids were not sent out, and voiced his concern 
      over formal bids not being sent out. Deputy Chief Steiner explained the reason for not sending out  
      formal bids. Commissioners asked several other questions that were answered by Deputy Chief  
      Steiner. 
 
       Public Comment 

 
   No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-33-15 

 
      Commissioner Martin made a motion to table Resolution No. R-33-15 until formal bids could be 
      sent out, Commissioner Vogt seconded the motion to table Resolution No. R-33-15. Roll call, Aye:  
      Vogt, Martin, Terry, Wilson, and Fess. Nay, None. 
 
       Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-33-15 tabled at this time. 
 
       RES. NO. R-34-15 
 
       A Resolution requesting authorization to purchase property located at 534-536 W. Water Street 
 
       RES. NO. R-35-15 
 
       A Resolution requesting authorization to purchase property located at 628-630 W. Water Street 
 
       RES. NO. R-36-15 
 
       A Resolution requesting authorization to purchase property located at 403-405 South Street 
 

Chris Schmiesing, City Planner provided the Staff Report for Resolutions R-34-15, R-35-15, and 
R-36-15. 

 
       The subject REO properties (lender real estate owned after an unsuccessful sale at a foreclosure 
        auction) are now owned by United National Bank who desires to donate the properties to the City  
       of Piqua Land Reutilization Program.  Receipt of these properties will result in the rehabilitation or  
       demolition of the existing improvements and the elimination of any substandard housing  
       conditions found at these locations, stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
       By the City accepting the donation it will cause the City to incur a couple hundred dollars in  
       recording fees incidental to the transfer of the property deed. 
 
       City Manager Huff provided a brief overview of the future of the properties. 
 
       Commissioner Terry stated it is not good to let properties get into such a state of disrepair, further    



 6

 stating the city needs to have stronger ordinances and property maintenance codes. 
 
 Mayor Fess stated it was generous of Unity National Bank to offer these properties to the City of   
 Piqua, and hopes other lending institutions will do the same in the future. 
 
  Public Comment 
 
  Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, voiced his opinion about changing the ordinances to include the  
  banks when property is owned by them and in disrepair.  Mr. Boehringer also stated the City HELP 
  program should be able to help rehab some of the houses in disrepair. 
 
  City Manager Huff provided a brief overview of the some of the other programs that can help citizens  
  including the CDBG program.  The Development Department and the New Program Director are  
  working hard to get things in place for homeowners. 
  
  Mayor Fess stated the banks did not let the properties get in such bad shape, they ended up with  
  them when the property owners did not take care of them. 
 
  Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-34-15, be 
  adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Wilson, Terry, and Fess. Nay, None.   Motion carried  
  unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolutions No. R-34-15 adopted. 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-35-15, be 
  adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay, None.   Motion carried  
  unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolutions No. R-35-15 adopted. 
 
  Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-36-15, be 
  adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Martin, Vogt, and Wilson.  Nay, None.   Motion carried  
  unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolutions No. R-36-15 adopted. 
 
   Public Comment  
 
   No one came forward to speak at this time. 
 
   City Manager’s Report 
 
   City Manager Huff reminded Commissioners to turn in their ballots for the Boards and Committees. 
 
    There are still several more Board openings if anyone is interested to contact the City Manager’s  
    Office for more information. 
 
     City Manager Huff commented on the number of citizen complaints received on the utility rates, and  
     provided a brief summary of the causes and findings.  City Manager Huff stated there are booklets  
     available in the Utility Office Lobby with tips that will help citizens to keep their utility costs down. 
     City Manager Huff further stated the City of Piqua is willing to work with citizens they just have to  
     call or come in and sit down with staff. 
 
    Commissioners Comments 
 
     Commissioner Wilson announce the Kiwanis Pancake Days will take place on Saturday March 14,  
     2015 from 7:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M. at the Upper Valley Career Center, and encouraged citizens to  
     come out and support the Kiwanis. 
 
 
      Commissioner Terry stated the city will monitor the Safe Routes to School Program and the 
      changes, and if problems occur changes can be made if necessary. 
 
 



 7

      Commissioner Vogt stated he made the motion to amend Ordinance No. 3-15 and then voted no,  
      further stating he did not believe it was a good ordinance at this time. 
 
      Commissioner Vogt publically apologized to Bill Jaqua for the statements he made to him at the  
      previous Commission Meeting. 
 
      Commissioner Vogt also stated he was upset about the way citizens were complaining to him 
      about the streets and the lack of snow removal by the city. 
 
      Mayor Fess stated tickets for Dancing with the Piqua Stars will go on sale at Hallmark on Saturday  
      March 7, 2015.  Dancing with the Piqua Stars will take place April 11 and the City Law Director  
      Stacy Wall, and Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director Justin Sommer will be  
      two of the celebrity participants this year.  Mayor Fess encouraged citizens to come out and  
      support the Piqua Arts Council’s Dancing with the Piqua Stars. 
 
      Mayor Fees also reminded citizens to support the Piqua Kiwanis Club Pancake Days on  
      March 14, 2015, at the Upper Valley Career Center, and provided a brief background on the  
      Kiwanis Club. 
 
      Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
      Commission Meeting at 9:00 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. 

 
 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS,  MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-37-15 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                      PUBLIC SERVICE OF WILLIAM J. COLLINS 
     AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, William J. Collins has retired as Police Lieutenant with the Police 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows 25 years of faithful and dedicated service to the 
City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
William J. Collins as Police Lieutenant with the Police Department, this Commission 
tenders its unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of 
public and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-38-15 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
MIAMI VALLEY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: William Vogt is hereby reappointed as a member to the Miami 
Valley Regional Planning Commission for a one-year term to expire March 1, 2016 or 
until his successor is confirmed and qualified. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 
                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-39-15 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING AN ALTERNATE MEMBER TO  
    THE MIAMI VALLEY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Justin Sommer is hereby reappointed as an alternate member 
to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission for a one-year term to expire 
March 1, 2016 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-40-15 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING AN ALTERNATE MEMBER TO  
    THE MIAMI VALLEY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Christopher Schmiesing is hereby reappointed as an alternate 
member to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission for a one-year term to 
expire March 1, 2016 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



    RESOLUTION NO. R-41-15 
 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER 
                       TO THE DOWNTOWN DISTRICT DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: James C. Oda is hereby reappointed as a member of the 
Downtown District Design Review Board for a term of three (3) years to expire on 
March 1, 2018 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified;  
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-42-15 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                                            ENERGY BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Sharon L. Lyons is hereby reappointed as a member of the 
Energy Board for a term to expire on February 28, 2020 or until her successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



  RESOLUTION NO. R-43-15 
 

       A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
                GOLF ADVISORY BOARD 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Gene Hill is hereby reappointed as a member of the Golf 
Advisory Board for a four-year term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor 
is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



  RESOLUTION NO. R-44-15 
 

       A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
                GOLF ADVISORY BOARD 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Scott Rasor is hereby reappointed as a member of the Golf 
Advisory Board for a four-year term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor 
is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-45-15 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                             TO THE PARK BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Robert Asbury is hereby appointed as a member of the Park 
Board for a term to expire on March 1, 2020 or until his successor is confirmed and 
qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-46-15 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                             TO THE PARK BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Jesse Dotson is hereby appointed as a member of the Park 
Board for a term to expire on March 1, 2020 or until his successor is confirmed and 
qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-47-15 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                          STORMWATER UTILITY BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1 : Steve Stiefel is hereby appointed as a member of the 
Stormwater Utility Board Committee for a 1-year term to expire on August 1, 2016 or 
until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



  RESOLUTION NO. R-48-15 
 

       A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
                  TREE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Robert Asbury is hereby appointed as a member of the Tree 
Committee for a four-year term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



  RESOLUTION NO. R-49-15 
 

       A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
                  TREE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: James Vetter is hereby appointed as a member of the Tree 
Committee for a four-year term to expire on March 1, 2019 or until his successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



   RESOLUTION NO. R-50-15 
 

       A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
                                       PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: James Oda is hereby reappointed as a member of the 
Planning Commission for a five-year term to expire on March 1, 2020 or until his 
successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



   RESOLUTION NO. R-51-15 
 

       A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
                                       PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Stuart Shear is hereby appointed as a member of the Planning 
Commission for a five-year term to expire on March 1, 2020 or until his successor is 
confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ORDINANCE NO.  4-15 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 94.21 
OF THE PIQUA CODE, RELATING TO FEES FOR 

USE OF PARK FACILITIES 
 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 SEC. 1: Section 94.21 (Fees for Use of Park Facilities), of the Piqua Code is 
hereby amended per Exhibit “A” attached hereto: 
 
 SEC 2:  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 1st Reading 3-3-2015 
 
             
        _____________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: ______________________ 
     REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Item # 18
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

March 3, 2015 
March 17, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An ordinance amending Section 94.21of the Piqua Code, Relating to fees for 
use of Park Facilities 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Brian Brookhart Assistant Public Works Director 
Department:  Public Works 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

In the February Park Board meeting, board members unanimously approved raising the Fees 
relating to use of Park Facilities.  The last time Fees for the Park Facilities were raised was 
2009.  The increase in Fees will help offset the operating cost and maintenance on the buildings. 
Attached you will find Exhibit B shows the current Rental Fees and Exhibit C shows the 
proposed Rental Fees.  City Residents will receive a discounted rate. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:   
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds:  
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Ordinance to amend Section 94.21for a fee increase for Park 
Rental Facilities 

2. Do not approve the ordinance and keep the current fees for Park Rental 
Facilities 

3.  

4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The new Rental Fees will apply after commission has approved the ordinance.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve the ordinance to allow for an increase in the Park Facility Fees 

ATTACHMENTS   

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Public Works Office 

________________________________________________________ 

Brian Brookhart 
859 S. Main Street, Piqua, Ohio 45356 
(937) 778-2095 - FAX (937) 778-2092 

E-Mail: bbrookhart@piquaoh.org 

February 13, 2015 

 
Memorandum 

 
To:  Gary Huff, City Manager 
 
Re: Request for Commission Authorization to Amend Section 94.21 of the Piqua Code 
Relating to Fees for the Use of Park Facilities 
 
 
 
At its most recent meeting, the Park Board voted unanimously to recommend to the City 
Commission raising the fees at the Public Park Facilities.  Attached you will see the current 
rental fees and proposed changes.  The proposed increases provide a discounted rate to those 
who live within Piqua corporation limits.   
 
The public park facilities for which we charge a fee require substantial maintenance and utility 
costs.  The fees will still not recover the entire cost of operating these facilities but will reduce 
the amount of support required from the general fund.   
 
Please let me know if I can provide any additional information pertaining to this matter. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Brookhart 
 
 
Assistant Public Works Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 
 

§ 94.21 FEES FOR USE OF PARK FACILITIES 

 
  The Parks Department shall charge the following fees for the use of Mote 
Park, Hollow Park and Fountain Park facilities: 
 

(A) Mote Park. 
 
(1) Use of the Community Center: $75 $100 per day for Monday‐

Thursday, and $110.00 $150.00 Friday‐Sunday and holidays. 
 

(2) Use of Piqua Players: $600 annually.      
 

(3)  Use of softball fields for softball tournaments: $150.00 for full day; 
$75.00 for evenings. 

 

(4) The above charges may be waived or reduced by the City Manager 
Public Works Director or designee, for community service 
organizations, where the waiver or reduction of fees would be in the 
best interest of our community. 
 

(B) Fountain Park. 
 
(1) Use of dining hall & kitchen:  $75.00 $100.00 per day for Monday‐

Thursday, and $100.00 $125.00 for Friday‐Sunday and holidays. 
 

(2) Use of Fountain Park Pavilion:  $75.00 $100.00 per day for Monday‐
Thursday, and $120.00 $150.00 Friday‐Sunday and holidays. 

 
(C) Residents who live within Piqua corporation limits received a 10% 

discount off of the above rates for Mote Park and Fountain Park Facilities 
with the exception of (A) (3) (Use of Piqua Players) in accordance with 
Exhibit C. 
 



 
(D)  The Hollow Park. 
 

(1) House rent: $350.00 per month effective January 1, 2009 (payable in 

monthly installments) per lease agreement. 

(’97 Code, §97.25) (Ord. 12‐69, passed 4‐21‐69; Am. Ord. 10‐82, passed 2‐1‐82: 

Am. Ord. 6‐90, passed 2‐19‐90; Am. Ord. 12‐98, passed 3‐16‐98; Am. Ord. 4‐02, 

passed 2‐19‐02; Am. Ord. 5‐05, passed 4‐18‐05) 



Exhibit “B” 

City OF Piqua 

2014 Park Reservation Fee Sheet 

Fountain Park Dining Hall – Enclosed Hall with stove, refrigerator, serving area, electricity and 

restrooms.  Available May through October.  Seats 125 persons. 

  City Resident Fee  Non‐City Resident Fee 

  $67.50      $75.00    Per day Monday – Thursday 

  $90.00      $100.00  Per day Friday – Sunday 

Mote Park Community Center – Enclosed Hall with stove, refrigerator, electricity and restrooms.  

Available all year round.  Seats 135 persons. 

  City Resident Fee  Non‐City Resident Fee 

  $67.50      $75.00    Per day Monday – Thursday 

  $99.00      $110.00  Per day Friday – Sunday 

Fountain Park Hance Pavilion‐ Open air covered entertainment facility, lights for evening activities, 

stage.  Available May through October.  Seats over 1,000. 

  City Resident Fee  Non‐City Resident Fee 

  $67.50      $75.00    Per day Monday – Thursday 

  $108.00    $120.00  Per day Friday – Sunday 

Gazebo in Downtown Square – Elevated gazebo with lights for evening activities. 

      No Charge 

Hollow Park Dining Hall – Open shelter with electric and restrooms.  Seats 96 persons 

      No Charge 

Small Shelters    No Charge 

    *Hollow Park West    *Upper Fountain Park 

    *Fountain Park South    *Pitsenbarger by the Pool 

  **First Come, First Served – No Reservations  



Exhibit “C” 

Proposed Park Facility Fee Changes by the Park Board 

 

Fountain Park Dining Hall –  Enclosed Hall with stove, refrigerator, serving area, electricity and 

restrooms.  Available May through October.  Seats 125 persons. 

City Resident Fee    Non‐City Resident Fee 

$75.00        $100.00    per day Monday‐Thursday 

$100.00      $125.00    per day Friday‐Sunday 

Mote Park Community Center  Enclosed Hall with stove, refrigerator, electricity and restrooms.  

Available all year round.  Seats 135 persons. 

City Resident Fee    Non‐City Resident Fee 

$75.00        $100.00    per day Monday‐Thursday 

$125.00      $150.00    per day Friday‐Sunday 

Fountain Park Hance Pavilion  Open air covered entertainment facility, lights for evening activities, 

stage.  Available May through October.  Seats over 1,000. 

City Resident Fee    Non‐City Resident Fee 

$75.00        $100.00    per day Monday‐Thursday 

$115.00      $150.00    per day Friday‐Sunday 

Gazebo in Downtown Square ‐ Elevated gazebo with lights for evening activities 

        No Charge 

Hollow Park Dining Hall – Open shelter with electric and restrooms.   

        No Charge 

Small Shelters      No Charge 

    *Hollow Park West    *Upper Fountain Park 

    *Fountain Park South    *Pitsenbarger by the Pool 

  ** First Come, First Served – No Reservations 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-52-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO APPLY FOR, ACCEPT, AND ENTER 
INTO A SUPPLEMENTAL WATER POLLUTION 
CONTROL LOAN FUND AGREEMENT ON BEHALF 
OF THE CITY OF PIQUA FOR PLANNING, DESIGN 
AND/OR CONSTRUCTION OF WASTEWATER 
FACILITIES; AND DESIGNATING A DEDICATED 
REPAYMENT SOURCE FOR THE LOAN 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua seek to upgrade existing wastewater facilities; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua intends to apply for a Supplemental Water 
Pollution Control Loan Fund (WPCLF) for the planning, design and construction of 
the wastewater facilities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Ohio Water Pollution Control Loan Fund requires the 
government authority to pass legislation for application of a loan and the execution of 
an agreement as well as designating a dedicated repayment source; now therefore, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to apply for 
a Supplemental WPCLF loan, sign all documents for and enter into a Water Pollution 
Control Loan Fund loan agreement for $1,400,000 with Ohio Environmental 
Protection Agency and the Ohio Water Development Authority for planning, design 
and/or construction of wastewater facilities on behalf of the City of Piqua, Ohio. The 
current rate of interest is 1.80% to be repaid over a five year period. 
   
 SEC. 2: That the dedicated source of repayment will be Wastewater 
Service Charges; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

(Incl

 

(Inclu

(In

ST

 

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

BUD
FINAN

udes project co

nclude Deny /A

PROJE

TAFF RECOM

AT

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC
osts and fundin

sources

OPTION
Approval Option

ECT TIMELIN

MMENDATIO

TTACHMENT

 

 
E March 1

E 
ce 
e) 

 

Authoriz
supplem
City of P
and desi

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 
d, 
n) 

 

 
The orig
(BioActi
longer an
needed f
approved
presente
approved
perform 
previous
a supple
needed. 

D 
T 

ng 
s) 

Budgete
Expendi
Source o
Narrativ

 
S 
n) 

 

1. App
Mia

2. Den
 

E 
 

Approva
approved
forward 
last com

 
N 

 
 

Approve
allowing
system S

S  Copy of 

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

7, 2015 

zing the City
mental Water 
Piqua for pla
gnating a de

& Title: Dave
ment: Wastew

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

ginal Facility
iflo) to remo
n option, pro
for the SSO r
d liquid treat
d to the Com
d by the OEP
Detailed De

sly approved
mental loan 

d $:  $
ture $:  $

of Funds: W
ve:  
prove and co
ami River, p
ny and find a

al would allo
d at the WPC
with other le

mmission mee
e the addition
g the City to 
SSO as requi

f Contract 

mmissi
ff Repo

y Manager to
Pollution C

anning, desig
edicated repa
e Davis & Cy
water Plant S

 
Ordinanc

ger/Developm
ctor;  

y Plan called
ove the SSO 
oven by the p
removal. Th
tment train t

mmission du
PA. The am
esign next, a
d will not cov

application 

$0 
$0 
Wastewater 

ontinue to m
er NPDES P
an alternativ

ow the City o
CLF April B
egislation fo
eting in Apri
nal borrowin
move ahead

ired by the O

ion Ag
ort 

o apply for, a
Control Loan 
gn and/or co
ayment sourc
ynthia Holtz
Supt. & Asst

ce 
 

ment 

d for the use 
from the co
pilot study, 

he Amended 
that will han

uring the wor
mended Facili
and the origin
ver the cost 
to WPCLF-

Budget 

move forward
Permit. 
ve funding so

of Piqua to a
Board Meetin
or Detailed D
il. 
ng to cover t
d with Facili
OEPA. 

genda  

accept, and e
Fund Agree

onstruction o
ce for the lo

zapple 
t. City Mana

Resolution 

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:  

of High Rat
ollection syst
as it was una
Facility Pla

ndle all proje
rk session in
ity Plan requ
nal loan amo
for this optio

-DEFA for th

d on the SSO

ource. 

apply by earl
ng. The City
Design Engin

the Detailed 
ty Plan to re

Item 

          

enter into a 
ement on beh
f wastewate
an: 

ager/Finance
 

Re

Manager/Fin
or 

e Treatment
tem. That pla
able to perfo

an calls for a 
ected flows. 
n February 20
uires that the
ount requeste
on. The City
he additiona

O removal fro

ly April and
y could then 
neering hope

Design Eng
emove the co

# 19

 

half of the 
r facilities; 

e 

gular 

nance 

t 
an is no 
orm as 

new and 
This was 
015 and also

e City 
ed, and 

y may submi
al $1.4M 

om the Grea

d hopefully 
move 
efully at the 

gineering 
ollection 

o 

it 

at 



























RESOLUTION NO. R-53-15 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE AGREEMENT WITH 
LJB, INC. FOR THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION 
SERVICES FOR THE GARNSEY STREET/COMMERCIAL 
STREET CORRIDOR NEIGHBORHOOD CONNECTOR 
PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution No. R-121-13 passed on September 17, 2013, 

this Commission enacted legislation for the Right-of-Way Acquisition Services for 
the Garnsey Street/Commercial Street Corridor Neighborhood Connector Project; 
and  

WHEREAS, the scope of the right-of-way acquisition services has been 
expanded to include additional research into the ownership of Commercial 
Street; and 

WHEREAS, this expanded scope is above and beyond what the original 
agreement with LJB, Inc. covered. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: Resolution No. R-121-13, a Resolution authorizing a 
purchase order to LJB, Inc. for the necessary Right-of-Way acquisition services 
for the Garnsey Street/Commercial Street Corridor Neighborhood Connector 
Project, be increased by $58,080 to a final amount of $130,180 is hereby 
approved. 

 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in 
payment according to this Resolution and certifies that the funds are available. 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item # 20
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
March 17, 2015 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Amending the Agreement with LJB Inc. for the Right-of-Way 
Acquisition Services for the Garnsey Street/Commercial Street Corridor 
Neighborhood Connector Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 
Department:  Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

In September of 2013, City Commission approved entering into an agreement 
with LJB Inc. for the Right-of-Way Acquisition Services for the Garnsey 
Street/Commercial Street Corridor Neighborhood Connector Project.  Since 
LJB, Inc. began their extensive research into the right-of-way for this project, 
this has prompted Miami County Tax Map Department to make revisions to the 
county map records, which has significantly impacted our project.    

Additional research will be necessary to be able to adequately identify the 
ownership of the parcels along Commercial Street, as well as to have LJB Inc. 
draw up the right-of-way plans, and complete the title searches & reports, 
appraisals, acquisitions, and title updates & closings as a part of the right-of-
way acquisition process.    

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  Increase contract amount by $58,080 to a total of $130,180  

Expenditure $:  $130,180 (includes a 10% contingency) 

Source of Funds: Fund 103 – Street Income Tax  

Narrative  As with the majority of our federally funded projects, the 
right-of-way costs are funded with 100% local funds.   

The City received $421,462 in grant funding from MVRPC 
for the construction of this project.  The total cost of 
construction is estimated to be $527,000.     

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution to amend the agreement with LJB Inc. for the 
additional right-of-way services. 

2. Do not approve the resolution and do not proceed with the right-of-way 
acquisition services for the project and return the grant money. 



 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The right-of-way services are on-going with project construction scheduled for 
the fall of 2016.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval of the Resolution to allow for the amendment to the agreement with 
LJB Inc. for the additional right-of-way services for the Garnsey 
Street/Commercial Street Corridor Neighborhood Connector Project. 

ATTACHMENTS  Resolution R-121-13, Right-of-Way Scope Revision Letter, and Fee Proposal 

 







  

February 13, 2015 

Ms. Amy Havenar, P.E. - City Engineer 
City of Piqua 
201 West Water Street 
Piqua, Ohio 45356 

Re: MIA-Bikepath Connections, PID 88228 – Right of Way Scope Revisions 

Dear Amy: 

Significant investigation of the right of way and property ownership along the project corridor has 
resulted in revisions to the county map records.  These revisions have significantly impacted the right of 
way document preparation and right of way acquisition portions of our contract’s scope.  As a result, we 
request consideration of this contract modification request.   

A discussion of the current status of the needed project right of way is presented below organized by 
block from the start of the project to the connection with the P.A.T.H..  An initial letter of our 
understanding of the necessary tasks was submitted on January 20, 2015.  Following review by Miami 
County (summarized in a letter received January 22, 2015) and ODOT (summarized via email from Ryan 
Hanke on January 27, 2015) we understand that all agencies are in agreement of the recommended plan to 
proceed as outlined below.  Proposed actions (beyond the normal acquisition process) are included in bold 
text. 

The summary of the increase in right of way scope results in this request to process a contract 
modification in the amount of $52,797 to complete this work.       

Easement acquisition is required from the city of Piqua parcel.  The city owns the property and easements 
will be depicted from ownership #1 on the right of way plans.   
 

The Clark Avenue right of way has been dedicated and is clear of any title concerns.  All proposed work 
is included in the right of way.  No additional action anticipated.  
 

The Wayne Street right of way has been dedicated and is clear of any title concerns.  All proposed work is 
included in the right of way.  No additional action anticipated.  
 

The land used as Commercial Street is owned by the railroad.  LJB recommends the development of 
legal descriptions and survey records to be used by the city in Quiet Title proceedings to obtain title 
to the property.  A dedication plat will be required to dedicate the property to the public use.   
 



 
 
 
MIA-Bikepath Connections, PID 88228 – Project Change Notice 
February 13, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
 

There is a small triangular portion of land at the southwest corner of the Commercial Street and Downing 
Street intersection that is used as Commercial Street for which the county has not identified any 
ownership.  LJB recommends the development of legal descriptions and survey records to be used 
by the city in Quiet Title proceedings to obtain title to the property.  LJB recommends the 
development of a dedication plat to dedicate this triangular portion of the land used as Commercial 
Street to the public use.  The City of Piqua has been granted an easement for the remainder of 
Commercial Street in this segment.  Quiet title action to clean up the underlying fee on this parcel is not 
recommended with this project and this area will be excluded from the dedication plat.     
 

Commercial Street in this segment is owned by the city of Piqua in 2 parcels.  Only one of these parcels 
has been dedicated for the public use.  LJB recommends the development of a dedication plat to 
dedicate this entire segment of the land used as Commercial Street to the public use.  The county has 
identified challenges in locating the boundaries of these parcels.  The boundary resolution will be 
reviewed with the county prior to development of the dedication plat.  
 

The property ownership in this area has been included in the LJB right of way plans and described as 
ownership #2 -5.  A disposition of each is included below: 

• #2 – This parcel’s ownership is a historic owner named Simon Greenbaum.  The likely resolution 
of this parcel is a quiet title action.  The parcel is not public right of way.  This parcel is included 
in the right of way plans.  LJB recommends completing the quiet title work now and 
including the area in the dedication plat.     

• #3 – The county has identified that this parcel is likely two ownerships rather than one.  One 
parcel is owned by the City of Piqua but is not clearly for street purposes.  LJB recommends 
including this parcel in the dedication plat.  The second parcel in this area, ownership 
assumed to be “Xavier Oweger, a.k.a. F.X. Oweger,” will be processed through quiet title 
action and included in the dedication plat.        

• #4 – The city owns this parcel but has not dedicated it for the public use as right of way.  It is 
currently included in the right of way plans for acquisition.  No additional action is anticipated.            

• #5 – The parcel is privately owned and there is no question of title.  It is currently included in the 
right of way plans for acquisition.  No additional action is anticipated.          

 

The southern section of this segment is owned by the city of Piqua.  The county research has indicated a 
potential overlap of the city parcel with the CSX parcel.  The city parcel has not been dedicated to the 
public use.  Quiet title action is necessary to resolve the overlap issue and bring title to the City of 
Piqua.  The city property in the location of current Commercial Street will be dedicated to the 
public use through the development of a dedication plat.  The northern section of this segment has 
been dedicated to the public use by an easement 32.5 feet wide (16.5 feet west and 16 feet east of the 
centerline).  This easement area will not be included in the dedication plat.     
 

The property is owned by the city of Piqua following quiet title action in 2014.  The property will be 
dedicated for the public use as right of way through a dedication plat.  LJB will set the iron pins in the 



 
 
 
MIA-Bikepath Connections, PID 88228 – Project Change Notice 
February 13, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 
 
field according to the approved survey records that the court acted upon.  LJB will rectify the 
dedication plat with adjacent surveys that the county has noted in later reviews.   
 

The property is owned by the city of Piqua following quiet title action in 2014.  The property will be 
dedicated for the public use as right of way through a dedication plat.  LJB will set the iron pins in the 
field according to the approved survey records that the court acted upon.  LJB will rectify the 
dedication plat with adjacent surveys that the county has noted in later reviews, particularly the 
Greg Burkhardt survey.  The county and city will send LJB a copy of the city ordinances that 
appropriate an additional 10 feet of right of way for Young Street.   
 

The property is owned by the city of Piqua following quiet title action in 2014.  The property will be 
dedicated for the public use as right of way through a dedication plat.  LJB will set the iron pins in the 
field according to the approved survey records that the court acted upon.  LJB will rectify the 
dedication plat with adjacent surveys that the county has noted in later reviews, particularly the 
Greg Burkhardt survey.  The county and city will send LJB a copy of the city ordinances that 
appropriate an additional 10 feet of right of way for Young Street. 
 

The property is owned by the city of Piqua following quiet title action in 2014.  The property will be 
dedicated for the public use as right of way through a dedication plat.  LJB will set the iron pins in the 
field according to the approved survey records that the court acted upon.  LJB will rectify the 
dedication plat with adjacent surveys that the county has noted in later reviews.   
    

Takes from parcels 13, 14 and 15 will remain as indicated on the LJB right of way plans.  The county 
research has indicated that the affected portion of Sycamore Street was vacated to the railroad and 
ConRail is the likely current owner of the parcel with a width of 25 feet in the project area.  As a result, 
ownership #16 will be revised to be 25’ wide.  LJB will revise the south line of ownership #17 by 
moving it south 5 feet as the result of the correction of the width of ownership #16 from 30 feet to 25 
feet.  LJB will revise the parcels proposed from ownership #17 to reflect this change.  LJB will 
revise the scale of detail sheets for the appropriate sections of the project north of the Wood Street 
intersection to 1”=10’.      
 
 



 
 
 
MIA-Bikepath Connections, PID 88228 – Project Change Notice 
February 13, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 
 
The above description has provided a recommendation to move the right of way for this project to 
completion.  A table detailing the fee proposal for this work is attached.     
 
If you have any questions or would like to discuss this in more detail, please feel free to give me a call at 
(937)259-5795 or email me at DHoying@LJBinc.com.          
   

Sincerely, 

LJB Inc.      Authorization to begin work: 

 

Daniel J. Hoying     
Project Manager  Amy Havenar, City Engineer Date 
 

cc: Andy Smith, Dennis Ventura – Miami County Engineer’s Office 
 Ryan Hanke, Tim Wampler – ODOT District 7 



RESOLUTION NO. R-54-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A THREE YEAR LEASE WITH  
PIQUA YOUTH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION   

 
WHEREAS, the City has leased land at Pitsenbarger Park to the Piqua Youth 

Football Association with the last lease expiring February 28, 2015; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Piqua Youth Football Association desires to renew the lease, 
benefitting the youth of the City of Piqua; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to lease the land for a period of three years. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a Lease in 
substantially the same form as attached Exhibit A with the Piqua Youth Football 
Association for the use of the land at Pitsenbarger Park as described within the 
lease.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 
        ________________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF PIQUA AND 
THE PIQUA YOUTH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION 

 
 The City of Piqua, Ohio, the Lessor, in consideration of the rents and covenants 
herein stipulated to be paid and performed by the Piqua Youth Football Association of 
Piqua, Ohio, the lessee, does hereby grant, demise, let and lease unto the said lessee, 
the premises described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
 To have and to hold the same with the appurtenances, unto the said lessee for 
and during a term of three (3) years from the first day of March 2015, until the last day 
of February 2018. 
 

Yielding and paying therefore, during the term aforesaid, the yearly rent of One 
Dollar ($1.00) payable in advance, on the first day of March of each year of this lease. 
 
 And said Lessee does hereby covenant and agree with said Lessor as follows: 
 

1. That the Lessee will pay said rent in the manner aforesaid; 
 

2. That the Lessee will use and occupy said premises in a careful, safe and 
proper manner and will indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability 
growing out of the use of said premises by said Lessee.  All participants and 
Piqua Youth Football Association activities shall sign a release and waive all 
claims against the City, its officers, elected officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers; 
 

3. That said Lessee will not use or occupy said premises for any purpose other 
than for use or promotion of the Piqua Youth Football Association program in 
the City of Piqua and shall occupy said premises for only so long as they 
maintain the Piqua Youth Football Association program; 
 

4. That the Lessee may have full control and occupancy of said premises for the 
duration of the contract.  That anyone using said premises without the written 
consent of the Lessee or Lessor is in violation of the said premises and that 
either party will have the right to remove said violators from the premises.  
Prior to the City constructing any fencing, the City shall notify the Piqua Youth 
Football Association and attempt to place such fencing as to not interrupt the 
space needed for the Piqua Youth Football Association.  The Piqua Youth 
Football Association shall have permission to place locks on gates to keep 
control of the play on the field and may leave the field unlocked for public use 
if field conditions and required maintenance of said fields permit unregulated 
use.  The City shall not be liable or responsible for any damage to the fields 
that may disrupt use by the Piqua Youth Football Association; 
 



5. That any failure of the Lessor to enforce rights or seek remedies upon any 
default of the Lessee with respect to the obligations of the Lessee hereunder, 
or any of them, shall not prejudice or affect the rights or remedies of the 
Lessor in the event of any subsequent default of the Lessee; 
 

6. That the Lessee will keep the said premises in  a clean and orderly state at all 
times by picking up and depositing all litter in the containers provided by the 
Lessor, and that the Lessor will provide a dumpster for disposal; 

 
7. The Lessor agrees to provide water, wastewater and electric service to 

Lessee at no charge.  The Lessor will assist, if appropriations permit, 
assistance in maintaining and repairing the concession stand and press box, 
storage building identified in Exhibit A and possessing the addresses of 721 
McKinley Ave., Pitsenbarger Football Concession Stand, and 1407 South 
Street for utility billing purposes.  All other structures, facilities and equipment 
are the responsibility of the Piqua Youth Football Association.  Lessor does, 
upon request from Lessee, maintain ability to accept or deny receipt and 
accountability of any or all structures, facilities and equipment for the purpose 
of placing on City Asset List and subsequent possible financing of 
maintenance, improvement or replacement.  The Lessee will submit written 
request for assistance with the maintenance and repair for the building at 
least three weeks in advance for minor repairs and by July 1 of each year for 
the following calendar year for any major repairs and renovations.  The 
submittal of requests for major repair and renovations will not necessarily 
guarantee the receiving of appropriations for work desired but will serve as 
input for the preparation and execution of the Lessor’s annual operating and 
capital budgets for the following year.  Lessee shall maintain insurance to 
provide coverage for loss or damage to any of its property stored or kept on 
the leased premises.  Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or loss 
to Lessee’s property located on the leased premises. 

 
8. The Lessee agrees to assume full responsibility of operating a youth Football 

program for the City of Piqua which includes all administration, staffing, 
concessions and field and structure maintenance;  
 

9. The Lessee shall maintain the leased premises in a safe condition at all 
times; Lessee shall indemnify Lessor for any negligence of maintenance of 
said premises; 
 

 
10. That the Lessee, shall not assign this lease or in any manner sublet the 

premises; Lessee may permit special use of the premises with permission of 
the City Manager or his designee; 
 

11. That the Lessee agrees to obtain liability insurance for the protection of the 
City and the Lessee and to the satisfaction of the City Manager for not less 



than One Million ($1,000,000) per occurrence bodily injury and property 
damage and One Million ($1,000,000) in the annual aggregate.  Lessee 
agrees to cause each insurance policy carried by Lessee insuring Lessee’s 
property against loss by fire or causes covered by the standard extended 
coverage endorsements to be written in a manner so as to provide that the 
insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against 
Lessor for any loss or damage covered by such policy.  A certificate of 
coverage for the liability coverage and the property coverage purchased by 
the Association should be on file with the City before the Association 
commences its program.  Lessor shall not be liable to the Lessee or any other 
party for any loss or damage caused by fire or any of the risks enumerated in 
the standard extended coverage endorsement. 

 
 Provided, however, if said Lessee shall fail to keep and perform any of the 

covenants, agreements, provisions, terms or conditions of this lease, on 
the part of the Lessee to be kept and performed, or if said Lessee shall 
abandon or vacate said premises during the term hereof, or if said Lessee 
shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if the interest of 
said Lessee in said premises shall be sold under execution of the other 
legal process, it shall be lawful for said Lessor to enter as if this lease has 
not been made, and thereupon this lease and everything herein contained 
on the part of said Lessor to be done and performed shall cease, 
determine and be utterly void; without prejudice, however, to the Lessor’s 
right of action for breach of covenant.  The commencement of a 
proceeding or suit in forcible entry and detainer or in ejectment, or 
otherwise, after any default by the Lessee, shall be equivalent, or 
otherwise, after any default by the Lessee, shall be equivalent in every 
respect to actual entry by the Lessor. 



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Lessor and Lessee have set their hands to 
duplicates hereon on the __________day of _________________, 2015. 
 
THE CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO 
 
By:___________________________ 
 Gary A. Huff 
 City Manager 
 
PIQUA YOUTH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 President 
 
Witness: ________________________ 
 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. R-55-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A THREE YEAR LEASE WITH  
PIQUA YOUTH SOCCER ASSOCIATION (PYSA)  

 
WHEREAS, the City has leased the soccer fields at Pitsenbarger Park to the 

Piqua Youth Soccer Association (PYSA) with the last lease expiring February 28, 2015; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the PYSA desires to renew the lease, benefitting the youth of the 
City of Piqua; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to lease the soccer fields for a period of three years. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a Lease in 
substantially the same form as attached Exhibit A with the Piqua Youth Soccer 
Association (PYSA) for the use of the soccer fields at Pitsenbarger Park.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 
        ________________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF PIQUA AND THE PIQUA YOUTH SOCCER 
ASSOCIATION FOR THE SOCCER COMPLEX 

 
 
 The City of Piqua, Ohio, the Lessor, in consideration of the rents and covenants 
herein after stipulated to be paid and performed by the Piqua Youth Soccer Association 
of Piqua, Ohio, (“PYSA”) the Lessee, does hereby grant, demise, let and lease unto the 
said Lessee, the premises described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
 To have and to hold the same with the appurtenances, unto the said Lessee for 
and during a term of three (3) years from the first day of March, 2015 until the last day 
of February, 2018. 
 
 Yielding and paying therefore, during the term aforesaid, the yearly rent of One 
Dollar ($1.00) payable in advance, on the first day of March of each year of this lease. 
 
 And said Lessee does hereby covenant and agree with said Lessor as follows: 
 

1. That the Lessee will pay said rent in the manner aforesaid; 
 

2. That the Lessee will use and occupy said premises in a careful, safe and 
proper manner and will indemnify and hold the City harmless from any liability 
growing out of the use of said premises by said Lessee.  All participants and 
Piqua Youth Soccer Association activities shall sign a release and waive all 
claims against the City, it’s officers, elected officials, employees, volunteers 
and agents; 

 
3. That said Lessee will not use or occupy said premises for any purpose other 

than for use or promotion of the Piqua Youth Soccer Association program in 
the City of Piqua and shall occupy said premises for only so long as they 
maintain the Piqua Youth Soccer Association program; 

 
4. That the Lessee may have full control and occupancy of said premises for the 

duration of the contract.  That anyone using said premises without the written 
consent of the Lessee or Lessor is in violation of the said premises and that 
either party will have the right to remove said violators from the premises; 
 

5. That any failure of the Lessor to enforce rights or seek remedies upon any 
default of the Lessee with respect to the obligations of the Lessee hereunder, 
or any of them, shall not prejudice or affect the rights or remedies of the 
Lessor in the event of any subsequent default of the Lessee; 
 

6. That the Lessee will keep the said premises in  a clean and orderly state at all 
times by picking up and depositing all litter in the containers provided by the 
Lessor, and that the Lessor will provide a dumpster and dispose of the litter; 



7. The Lessor agrees to provide water, wastewater, electric service and grass 
cutting to Lessee at no charge as more specifically defined herein.  The 
Lessor will assist, if appropriations permit, assistance in maintaining and 
repairing the concession stand building identified in Exhibit A and possessing 
the address of Marlboro Street Concession Stand for utility billing purposes.  
All other structures, facilities and equipment are the responsibility of the Piqua 
Youth Soccer Association.  Lessor does, upon request from Lessee, maintain 
ability to accept or deny receipt and accountability of any or all structures, 
facilities and equipment for the purpose of placing on City Asset List and 
subsequent possible financing of maintenance, improvement or replacement.  
The Lessee will submit written request for assistance with the maintenance 
and repair for the building at least three weeks in advance for minor repairs 
and by July 1st of each year for the following calendar year for any major 
repairs and renovations.  The submittal of requests for major repair and 
renovations will not necessarily guarantee the receiving of appropriations for 
work desired but will serve as input for the preparation and execution of the 
Lessor’s annual operating and capital budgets for the following year.  Lessee 
shall maintain insurance to provide coverage for loss or damage to any of its 
property stored or kept on the leased premises.  Lessor shall not be 
responsible for any damage or loss to Lessee’s property located on the 
leased premises; 

 
a. Mowing:  The City of Piqua is responsible for the mowing of the 

park; however, at a minimum during soccer season, the City of 
Piqua shall mow the fields as specified below and any additional 
mowing over and above one time per week shall be the 
responsibility and cost of PYSA: 

 
(1) Spring:  The City of Piqua shall mow three (3) fields in 

March, April and May on a weekly basis or as needed due 
to weather related issues; 

 
(2) Strawberry Festival:  The City of Piqua shall mow ten (10) 

fields, including the soccer fields and football field, one (1) 
time per week for the Strawberry Festival Tournament.  
PYSA shall notify Amy Havener, City Engineer, of the date 
of scheduled play; 

 
(3) Fall:  The City of Piqua shall mow ten (10) fields for the Fall 

in coordination with PYSA as smaller fields are made for 
play. 

 
8. The Lessee agrees to assume full responsibility of operating a youth soccer 

program for the City of Piqua which includes all administration, staffing, 
concessions and field and structure maintenance;  

 



9. The Lessee shall maintain the leased premises in a safe condition at all 
times; Lessee shall indemnify Lessor for any intentional or negligent 
maintenance of said premises; 

 
10. That the Lessee, shall not assign this lease or in any manner sublet the 

premises; Lessee may permit special use of the premises with permission of 
the City Manager or his designee, and additionally: 

 
a. Select Soccer:  PYSA may permit Select Soccer teams to use the 

soccer complex during the term of the lease.  However, 
scheduling with the Select teams is to only have play on the fields 
Wednesday through Sunday. 

   
b. Strawberry Festival Tournament:  PYSA is permitted to allow use 

of the fields for the purpose of the Troy Strawberry Festival 
Tournament.  Said use shall only be permitted if proper releases 
are executed by the City of Troy, Ohio or the Strawberry Festival 
Committee, whichever entity is responsible, and the participating 
teams, releasing the City of Piqua, Ohio from all liability. 

 
11. That the Lessee agrees to obtain liability insurance for the protection of the 

City and the Lessee and to the satisfaction of the City Manager for not less 
than One Million ($1,000,000) per occurrence bodily injury and property 
damage and One Million ($1,000,000) in the annual aggregate.  Lessee 
agrees to cause each insurance policy carried by Lessee insuring Lessee’s 
property against loss by fire or causes covered by the standard extended 
coverage endorsements to be written in a manner so as to provide that the 
insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against 
Lessor for any loss or damage covered by such policy.  A certificate of 
coverage for the liability coverage and the property coverage purchased by 
the Association should be on file with the City before the Association 
commences its program.  Lessor shall not be liable to the Lessee or any other 
party for any loss or damage caused by fire or any of the risks enumerated in 
the standard extended coverage endorsement. 

 
 Provided, however, if said Lessee shall fail to keep and perform any of the 

covenants, agreements, provisions, terms or conditions of this lease, on 
the part of the Lessee to be kept and performed, or if said Lessee shall 
abandon or vacate said premises during the term hereof, or if said Lessee 
shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if the interest of 
said Lessee in said premises shall be sold under execution of the other 
legal process, it shall be lawful for said Lessor to enter as if this lease has 
not been made, and thereupon this lease and everything herein contained 
on the part of said Lessor to be done and performed shall cease, 
determine and be utterly void; without prejudice, however, to the Lessor’s 
right of action for breach of covenant.  The commencement of a 



proceeding or suit in forcible entry and detainer or in ejectment, or 
otherwise, after any default by the Lessee, shall be equivalent, or 
otherwise, after any default by the Lessee, shall be equivalent in every 
respect to actual entry by the Lessor. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Lessor and Lessee have set their hands to 

duplicates hereon on the __________day of March, 2015.  
 

THE CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO   PIQUA YOUTH SOCCER ASSOC. 
 

By:___________________________  By:____________________________ 
Gary A. Huff       
City Manager      President 
 
       By:____________________________ 
       Kenneth L. Deal 
       Treasurer  

 
       
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Piqua Youth Soccer Association 
Lease Physical Description 

 
 

Beginning with the northwest corner going east along South Street, 200 

feet east.  Then 50 feet south, then 135 feet east along south edge of fence 

and parking area.  From that point, going 300 feet south, southeast, then 420’ 

south to power lines.  From that point, heading 1075 feet east along power 

lines towards McKinley Ave. stopping 50 feet short of property lines on 

McKinley.  From that point heading south 245 feet to the southeastern most 

point.  From that point, running 552 feet to existing fence line, then 784 feet 

along fence line, then 25 feet along gate area, then 113 feet to southwestern 

most corner.  From that point running 850 feet north back to northwestern 

most point.  Included in this area is soccer concession stand and kickboard.  

Not included property in this area is playground equipment located to the 

southwest of concession stand. 

(Playground equipment owned and maintained by the City of Piqua). 



RESOLUTION NO. R-56-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO  
BOBCAT COMPANY FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN EXCAVATOR, 
ATTACHMENTS, AND UTILITY VEHICLE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Underground Utilities Department requires the purchase of an excavator, 
attachments, and utility vehicle for fulfilling their daily work orders efficiently and effectively 
throughout the City of Piqua; and 
 
 WHEREAS, purchase will be made using the Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program 
STS515; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to BobCat Company in the amount of 
$108,552.53. 
 

SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby authorized 
to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment for said services 
rendered. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 

period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

 

 
AG

 
 

 

ME

RE

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA

BUD
FINAN

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC

 

 
E 

 
Tuesday

E 
 

 
A RESO
BOBCA
EXCAVA
 

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 

 

 
This pur
Utilities 
excavato
technolo
excavato
compact
machine
determin
The exca
Coopera
attachme
 
This reso
(UTV) a
$20,489
UTV and
equipme
hydrant 
 

D 
T 

 

Budgete

Expendi
Source o
Narrativ

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

y, March 17, 

OLUTION A
AT COMPA
ATOR, ATTA

& Title:  Todd
ment: Underg

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

rchase will in
Department

or purchase w
ogy, compact
or attachmen
tor, three var
e has been de
ned to be the
avator portio

ative Purchas
ents. 

olution also 
also on the S
.68. This uti
d will includ

ent for variou
flushing, uti

d $:  $
2

ture $:  $
of Funds: 4
ve:  U

W
e

mmissi
ff Repo

2015 

AUTHORIZIN
ANY FOR 
ACHMENTS

d Brandenbu
ground Utilit

 
Ordinanc

ger/Developm
ctor  

ncrease the e
t field operat
will replace 
t size, and v

nts include a 
rious sized b
emonstrated 
e best piece o
on of this pu
sing Program

includes the
tate of Ohio
lity vehicle w

de a “road pa
us maintenan
ility line loca

$147,000 To
2015.  
$108,552.53
403-000-190
Underground
Water, Wast
entirely supp

ion Ag
ort 

NG A PURC
THE PU

S, AND UTIL

urg, Undergr
ties Departm

ce 
 

ment 

effectiveness
tions in wate
the departm
ersatility to 
hydraulic th

buckets, and 
by Undergr

of equipmen
urchase will b
m and will to

e purchase of
o Cooperativ
will be in ad
ackage” allo
nce tasks inc
ating, and le

otal budgeted

3 Total ($20,
0-3392 
d Utilities is
tewater and 
ported by the

genda  

CHASE OR
URCHASE 
LITY VEHIC

round Utiliti
ment 

Resolution 

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:  

s and efficie
er distributio

ment’s aging b
perform var

humb, demo
a hydraulic 

round Utilitie
nt to replace 
be through th
otal $88,062

f a Bobcat 3
e Purchasing

ddition to ou
owing staff to
cluding fire h

eak surveys. 

d for both pi

,489.68 UTV

s supported b
Stormwater.
e Water Cap

Item 

          

RDER TO  
OF AN 

CLE 

ies Superinte

 
Re

Manager/Fin
or 

ncy of the U
on. The Bobc
backhoe wit

rious tasks. T
lition hamm
swivel attac
es Staff and 
our existing
he State of O
.85 includin

400 Utility V
g Program to

ur existing Bo
o utilize this
hydrant pum
 

ieces of equi

V / $88,062.8

by the budge
. This expen
pital Budget.

# 23

 

endent 

gular 

nance 

Underground
cat E63 
th newer 
The 

mer, plate 
chment. This
has been 

g backhoe. 
Ohio 
g the 

Vehicle 
otaling 
obcat 3200 

s piece of 
mping, fire 

ipment in 

85 E63)  

ets for 
nse will be 
 

d 

s 



 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution R-57-15 authorizing the purchase of the Bobcat E63 
Excavator and 3400 UTV 

2. Do not approve the Resolution. Underground Utilities will continue using 
the existing equipment with increased maintenance expenses, downtime, 
and decreased efficiency.   

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The delivery of this equipment should be within 2 months of our order. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

It is the staff recommendation to approve this Resolution to purchase the 
aforementioned pieces of equipment to increase Underground’s effectiveness in 
carrying out daily operational tasks with versatile pieces of equipment such as 
this. 
 

ATTACHMENTS  Capital purchase approvals, STS Information, Bobcat quotes – Exhibit “A” 

 































RESOLUTION NO. R-57-15 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
APPROPRIATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ON 1712 PARK AVENUE, PIQUA, MIAMI 

COUNTY, OHIO IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO FOR 
PUBLIC PURPOSES 

   
WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Plan includes the Safe Routes to School 

Project and the Complete Streets Plan; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City has received federal and state funding for the Safe Routes 
to School Project, including for handicap ramps on public sidewalks; and 
 

WHEREAS, the agreement for the Safe Routes to School Project has been in the 
planning stages since 2011, funding was approved in 2012 and completion is scheduled 
for 2015; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Safe Routes to School Project is in need for the safety of the 

school children and for the encouragement of physical activity by children walking or 
biking to school and thus serves a public purpose; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 163 of the Ohio Revised Code has been complied with, 

including providing notice to the property owner of 1712 Park Avenue that the City 
desires to purchase the property in order to complete the installation of handicapped 
ramps on the sidewalk; and  

 
WHEREAS, the property owner was made aware of the project and the potential 

need of the City to acquire the property on November 19, 2014, and February 4, 2015, 
and negotiations have been unsuccessful to date but are ongoing and fair market value 
has been offered. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1. In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the 
improvements of sidewalks in conjunction with the Safe Routes to School Program 
serves a public purpose and is a project being completed in conjunction with federal 
and state funds and the direction of the Ohio Department of Transportation. 
  
SECTION 2. The acquisition of 1712 Park Avenue, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio is 
needed for the mandates of making sidewalks handicap accessible in conjunction 
with the Safe Routes to School Project and said acquisition is under a time 
constraint or the City risks the loss of funding.  
 
SECTION 3.   The City Law Director is authorized to commence appropriation 
proceedings in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County with regards to 1712 Park 
Avenue, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, for public purposes. 
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution is declared an emergency for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua as the City is 



required to acquire the described property and if not done so immediately, the City 
will lose the necessary funding for the Safe Routes to School Project.   
 

 
 
               
        _______________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  R-58-15 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
APPROPRIATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ON 230 WEST HIGH STREET, PIQUA, MIAMI 

COUNTY, OHIO IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO  
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 

   
WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Plan includes the Safe Routes to School 

Project and the Complete Streets Plan; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City has received federal and state funding for the Safe Routes 
to School Project, including for handicap ramps on public sidewalks; and 
 

WHEREAS, the agreement for the Safe Routes to School Project has been in the 
planning stages since 2011, funding was approved in 2012 and completion is scheduled 
for 2015; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Safe Routes to School Project is in need for the safety of the 

school children and for the encouragement of physical activity by children walking or 
biking to school and thus serves a public purpose; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 163 of the Ohio Revised Code has been complied with, 

including providing notice to the property owner of 230 West High Street that the City 
desires to purchase the property in order to complete the installation of handicapped 
ramps on the sidewalk; and  

 
WHEREAS, the property owner was made aware of the project and the potential 

need of the City to acquire the property on November 19, 2014, and February 3, 2015, 
and negotiations have been unsuccessful to date but are ongoing and fair market value 
has been offered. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1. In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the 
improvements of sidewalks in conjunction with the Safe Routes to School Program 
serves a public purpose and is a project being completed in conjunction with federal 
and state funds and the direction of the Ohio Department of Transportation. 
  
SECTION 2. The acquisition of 230 Wes High Street, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio 
is needed for the mandates of making sidewalks handicap accessible in conjunction 
with the Safe Routes to School Project and said acquisition is under a time 
constraint or the City risks the loss of funding.  
 
SECTION 3.   The City Law Director is authorized to commence appropriation 
proceedings in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County with regards to 1855 Park 
Avenue, Piqua, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, for public purposes. 
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution is declared an emergency for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua as the City is 



required to acquire the described property and if not done so immediately, the City 
will lose the necessary funding for the Safe Routes to School Project.   
 

 
 
               
        _______________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-59-15 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
APPROPRIATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ON 1846 PARK AVENUE, PIQUA, MIAMI 
COUNTY, OHIO IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO  

FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 
   

WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Plan includes the Safe Routes to School 
Project and the Complete Streets Plan; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City has received federal and state funding for the Safe Routes 
to School Project, including for handicap ramps on public sidewalks; and 
 

WHEREAS, the agreement for the Safe Routes to School Project has been in the 
planning stages since 2011, funding was approved in 2012 and completion is scheduled 
for 2015; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Safe Routes to School Project is in need for the safety of the 

school children and for the encouragement of physical activity by children walking or 
biking to school and thus serves a public purpose; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 163 of the Ohio Revised Code has been complied with, 

including providing notice to the property owner of 1846 Park Avenue that the City 
desires to purchase the property in order to complete the installation of handicapped 
ramps on the sidewalk; and  

 
WHEREAS, the property owner was made aware of the project and the potential 

need of the City to acquire the property on November 19, 2014, and February 5, 2015, 
and negotiations have been unsuccessful to date but are ongoing and fair market value 
has been offered. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1. In accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the 
improvements of sidewalks in conjunction with the Safe Routes to School Program 
serves a public purpose and is a project being completed in conjunction with federal 
and state funds and the direction of the Ohio Department of Transportation. 
  
SECTION 2. The acquisition of 1846 Park Avenue, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio is 
needed for the mandates of making sidewalks handicap accessible in conjunction 
with the Safe Routes to School Project and said acquisition is under a time 
constraint or the City risks the loss of funding.  
 
SECTION 3.   The City Law Director is authorized to commence appropriation 
proceedings in the Common Pleas Court of Miami County with regards to 1846 Park 
Avenue, Piqua, Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, for public purposes. 
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution is declared an emergency for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua as the City is 



required to acquire the described property and if not done so immediately, the City 
will lose the necessary funding for the Safe Routes to School Project.   
 

 
 
               
        _______________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 


	2015 - 031715 City Commission Meeting Agenda Packet
	agenda
	2015 - 021715 Commission Commission Minutes
	2015 - 030315 Commission Commission Minutes

	res37_15
	res38_15
	res39_15
	res40_15
	res41_15
	res42_15
	res43_14
	res44_15
	res45_15
	res46_15
	res47_15
	res48_15
	res49_15
	res50_15
	res51_15
	ord04_15_2
	ord04_15_2
	ord04_15_2b
	ord04_15_2c
	ord04_15_2d
	ord04_15_2e
	ord04_15_2f

	res52_15
	res52_15
	res52_15b
	res52_15c

	res53_15
	res53_15
	res53_15b
	res53_15c
	res53_15d
	res53_15e

	res54_15
	res54_15
	res54_15b

	res55_14
	res55_14
	res55_14b

	res56_15
	res56_15
	res56_15b
	res56_15c

	res57_15
	res58_15
	res59_15

